Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP

Indenendent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Indivinity Clothing Retail Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Finanecial Statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Indivinity Clothing Retail Private Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the Statement of Profit and Loss
including Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and total com prehensive income (comprising of
loss and other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act . Our responsibilifies under those Standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Finartial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical respon sibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

4. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Director’s report but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that thereis a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the Financial Statement

5.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

7

8.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based

on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that

. may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a

material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related

disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.

However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.
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9. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

10.We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

11. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

12.As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income, the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023, taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023, from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f) Clause (i) of Section 143(3) on internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is not
applicable pursuant to notification G.S.R 583(E) dated 13 June 2017.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

ii. The Company has long-term contracts as at March 31, 2023, for which there were no material
foreseeable losses. The Company did not have any Derivative contracts as at March 31, 2023.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the company during year ended March 31, 2023.

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
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that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries (Refer Note 51(vi)(a) to the financial statements);

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been

(c)

received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries (Refer Note 51(vi)(b) to the
financial statements); and

Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

vi. As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended), which provides for
books of account to have the feature of audit trail, edit log and related matters in the accounting
software used by the Company, is applicable to the Company only with effect from financial year
beginning April 1, 2023, the reporting under clause (g) of Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), is currently not applicable.

13. The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009

o“}hp.%wwm

Sonika Burman

Partner

Membership Number 504839
UDIN: 23504839BGYXIR3361

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 05, 2023
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i

ii.

iv.

()

(b)

(A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation, of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

The Property, Plant and Equipment are physically verified by the Management according to a
phased programme designed to cover all the items over a period of 3 years which, in our opinion,
is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to
the programme, a portion of the Property, Plant and Equipment has been physically verified by
the Management during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such
verification.

(c¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company

(d)

(e)

(a)

examined by us, the Company does not own any immovable properties. Refer Note 3 to the
financial statements. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

The Company has chosen cost model for its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of
Use assets) and intangible assets. Consequently, the question of our commenting on whether the
revaluation is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer, or specifying the amount of change,
if the change is 10% or more in the aggregate of the net carrying value of each class of Property,
Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets does not arise.

Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated
on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of
Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made thereunder, and therefore the
question of our commenting on whether the Company has appropriately disclosed the details in
its financial statements does not arise.

The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
Management during the year and, in our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification
by Management is appropriate. In respect of inventory lying with third parties, these have
substantially been confirmed by them. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of
inventory as compared to book records were not 10% or more in aggregate for each class of
inventory and have been appropriately dealt with in the books of account.

(b) During the year, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores,

in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The bank has explained to the
management that there is no need for the Company to file the quarterly returns or statements
with such bank and accordingly, the question of our commenting on whether the returns or
statements are in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company does not arise.
Also refer Note 51(il) to the Financial Statements.

The Company has not made any investments, granted secured/ unsecured loans/advances in
nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or provided security to any parties. Therefore, the reporting
under clause 3(iii), (iii)(a), (iii)(b), (iii)(c), (iii)(d), (iii)(e) and (iii)(f) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments or provided any guarantees or
security to the parties covered under Sections 185 and 186. Therefore, the reporting under clause
3(iv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
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vii. (a)

(b)

viil.

ix. (a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

x. (a)

(b)

xi. (a)

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
referred in Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent
notified.

The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues,
including income tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, professional tax and labour
welfare fund and goods and services tax and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with
the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no transactions in the books of account that has heen surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that
has not been recorded in the books of account.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation
given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest to any lender during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared Wilful Defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans
have been applied for the purposes for which they were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that no
funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company did not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies
during the year. Therefore, the reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) and 3 (ix)(f) of the order are not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
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X1i.

xiii.

Xiv.

(b)

(o)

information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material
fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been
informed of any such case by the Management.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, a report under Section 143(12) of the Act, in Form ADT-
4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 was not required
to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(b) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, and as represented to us by the management, no
whistle-blower complaints have been received during the year by the Company. Accordingly, the
reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the
reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the
provisions of Section 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard 24 “Related
Party Disclosures” specified under Section 133 of the Act.

The Company is not mandated to have an internal audit system during the year.
The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons

connected with him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions of Section 192
of the Act under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi. (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India

Act, 1934. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities during the

year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the

Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi){c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(d) Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company, the

XVil.

Group has 8 CICs (registered and unregistered) as part of the Group as mentioned in note 51 (xii)
to the financial statements. We have not, however, separately evaluated whether the information
provided by the management is accurate and complete.

The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 2,962.45 lacs in the financial year and of Rs.
2,322.64 lacs in the immediately preceding financial year.
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xviil.

XIX.

xxi.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly the
reporting under clause (xviii) is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios
(Also refer Note 45 to the financial statements), ageing and expected dates of realisation of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based
on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the
audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give
any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The provisions relating to Corporate Social Responsibility under Section 135 of the Act are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone
Financial Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included
in this report.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009

72m¢ha~ B urrom

Sonika Burman

Partner

Membership Number 504839
UDIN: 23504839BGYXIR3361

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 05, 2023



Indivinity Clothing Retail Private Limited
CIN: U18109HR2021PTC093323

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

(All amounts are in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

q As at As at
Earticulars INotes March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 3 5,198.50 1,221.36
Right-of-use assets 4 26,614.88 6,982.74
Capital work-in-progress 5 30165 127.81
Other Intangible assets 6 63.53 50.45
Finance Lease Receivable 7 1,097.91 -
Financial assets
(i) Security deposits 8 1,016.62 32515
(i1) Other financial assets 9 10.57 10.12
Deferred tax assets (net) 10 3,305.11 -
Non-current tax assets (net) 1 10.02 7.47
Other non- current assets 12 513.31 248.65
Total non- current assets 38,132.10 8,973.75
Current assets
Inventories 13 7,693.58 2,697.21
Financial assets
(i) Investments 14 - 1,234.30
(i) Trade recejvables 15 160.31 7.39
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 16 172.31 7.29
(iv) Bank balance other than (iii) above 17 a: 33.90
(v) Security deposits 18 - 1144
{vi) Other financial assets 19 43.65 7.72
Other current assets 20 246517 723.72
Total current assets 10,535.02 4,722.97
Total Assets 4B.667.12 13,696.72
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 21 5,904.97 3,500.00
Other equity 22 2,585.19 362.22
Total Equity 8,490.16 3,862.22
Liabilities
Non- current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(1) Borrowings 23 3,500.00 -
(ii) Lease liabilities 24 27,077.64 6,659.35
(iii) Other financial liabilities 25 196.78 -
Employee benefit obligations 26 153,72 12077
Total non-current liabilities 30,928.14 6,799.12
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 23 1,136.23 =
(ii) Lease Liabilities 27 1,699.09 513.48
(iii) Trade payables B
enterprises 28 36.69 27184
-Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 4,614.26 1,384.56
enterprises and small enterprises
(iv) Other financial liabilities 29 1,378.54 716.54
Employee benefit obligations 30 110.84 8189
Other current liabilities 31 273,17 f7.07
Total current liabilities 9,248.82 3.035.38
Total liabilities 40.176.06 9,834.50
Total equity and liabilities 48,667.12 13.696.72

The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Firm Registration No. 304026E/E-300009

7‘&e«i)m~ Buorman

Sonika Burman

Indivinity Clothing Retail Private Limited

ol

Partner
Membership No. 504839

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 05, 2023

Sundecp Pal
(s

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 05, 2023

ief Excoutive Officer

Tarun Radhakrishin
Tahiliani

Director
DIN : 00045531

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 05, 2023

T

Yogesh Sharma
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 05, 2023

Director
DIN : 01842066

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 05, 2023

v,
—
.
i ,/
e ——
Sonin Bhandari
Company Secretary
Member No. A20650
Place: Gurugram
Date: May 05, 2023



Indivinity Clothing Retail Private Limited

CIN: U18109HR2021PTC093323

Statement of Profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes Year ended March | Year ended March 31,
31,2023 2022

Income:
Revenue from operations 32 4,928.74 156.94
Other income 33 147.77 182.42
Total income 5,076.51 339.36
Expenses
Cost of raw materials consumed 34A 1,445.12 1,799.34
Changes in inventories of work in progress, stock in trade and finished goods 34B (4,400.20) (2,412.21)
Purchases of traded goods 34C 1,197.67 -
Employee benefits expense 35 2,091.06 781.65
Finance costs 36 1,728.16 268.54
Depreciation and amortisation expense 37 2,433.03 475.66
Other expenses 38 10,660.42 2.485.49
Total expenses 15,155.26 3,398.47
Loss before tax (10,078.75) (3.059.11)
Income tax expense: 39
Current tax -
Deferred tax (3,310.34)
Total tax expense (3,310.34) -
Loss for the year (6,768.41) (3,059.11)
Other Comprehensive income
Items that will not to be reclassified to statement of profit and loss
Re-measurement gain on defined benefit plan 49 20.77 2.48
Income tax effect on above (5.23) =
Total other Comprehensive gain, net of tax 15.54 2.48
Total Comprehensive Loss for the year (6,752.87) (2.056.62)
Earnings per equity share [Nominal value of share X 10 (March 31, s
2022 : ¥10)]
(1) Basic (15.54) (8.74)
(2) Diluted (15.54) 8.74)

The above statement of profit and loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP

Firm Registration No. 304026E/E-300009

\ge&.ﬁm Busvran
Sonika Burman

Partner
Membership No. 504839

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 05, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Indivinity Clothing Retail Private Limited

wlodine

Santeep Pal
Chief Executive Officer

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 05, 2023

Tarun Radhakrishin
Tahiliani
Director

DIN : 00045531

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 05,2023

=

Yogesh Sharma
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 05, 2023

Director
DIN : 01842066

Place: Mumbai
Date: May o5, 2023

>

Sonia Bhiandar
Company Secretary
Member No. A20650

Place: Gurugram

Date: May 05, 2023



Indivinity Clothing Retail Private Limited

CIN: U18109HR2021PTC093323

Statement of Changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A Equity Share Capital

Equity shares of % 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up No. of Shares Amount

As at March 31, 2021 3,50,00,000 3,500.00
Shares issued during the year - -
As at March 31, 2022 3,50,00,000 3,500.00
Shares issued during the year 2,40,49,707 2,404.97
As at March 31,2023 5,90,49,707 5,904.97

B Other Equity

Attributable to the equity holders
] Reserves and surplus 5
Particulars Securities Premium Retained earnings Total Other equity
(Refer note 22) (Refer note 22)
As at April 01, 2021 3,491.18 (72.33) 3,418.85
Shares issued during the year - - -
Loss for the year (3,059.11) (3,059.11)
Re-measurement gain on defined benefit plan = 2.48 2.48
As at March 31, 2022 3,491.18 (3,128.96) 362.22
As at April 01, 2022 3,491.18 (3,128.96) 362.22
Shares issued during the year 8,975.84 . 8,975.84
Loss for the year - (6,768.41) (6,768.41)
Re-measurement gain on defined benefit plan - 15.54 15.54
As at March 31, 2023 12,467.02 (9,881.83) 2.585.10
The above statement of change in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration No. 304026E/E-300009 Indivinity Clothing Retail Private Limited
’
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Tahiliani
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Partner
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Date: May 05, 2023

andeep Pal
Chief Executive Officer

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 05, 2023
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Place: Gurugram
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Yogesh Sharma
Chief Financial Officer
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Indivinity Clothing Retail Private Limited
CIN: UtB109H R2021PTC093323

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are in  Lakhs, unless otherwise stated}

Repayment of borrowings
Payment of lease liabilities

Particnlars Year ended March 31,2023 | Year ended March 31, 2022
Loss before tax (10,078.75) (3,059.11)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2,433.03 475,66
Finanes costs 1,728.16 268.54
luleieé income on fixed deposits (8.56) (71.56)
Unwinding of discount on security deposits. (106.26) (7.73)
et gain from investments in mutual funds (14.55) (103.13)
14#= on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1.93 2.48
Operating Loss before working capital changes (6,045.00) (2.404.85)
Change in working capital
Increase in inventories (4,990.37]
Inerease in trade receivables {15.02)
== |ty othier financial assets and security depasits (609.70)
1 otlier curen) assets (1,741.45)
trade payables L0455
Iner in other current liabilities 206.10
Iierzas in other current financial liabilities ooual
Increase in other non current financial liabilities 178
1 in empl benefit obligati 63,67
Cash generated from operations (9,880.13) (4,218.93)
Income taxes paid (2.55) (7.47)
Net cash flows from operating activities {0,882.68) (4,226.40)
Cash flow from investing activities
Purehiase of propecty; plant and equipment ieluding o pital work-in-progress (4,480.11) (1,108.95)
Dietrease/(nenvass) in depusits with financial institutione 33.45 (33.90)
Frpeveds from sale of property, plant and equipment 1141 3
Interest received 8.56 7144
Proceeds from sale of investments 1,248.85
Increase in other non current financial asset (10.12)
Favaeints for purchiase of investments - (1,131.17)
Net eash used in investing activities (3,177.84) (2,212.70)
(*ash flow from financing activities
Procweds from issuance of shares 1,380.81
Procreds from borrowings 13,753-60

(9,253.60)
1,063.34)

(226, 055)

Interest on lease liabilities (1479.04] (n6iB54)
Interest on Barrowings (2aquica) -,
Net eash flows from/(used ) in financing activities 13,089.31 (494.59)
Net inerease/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 28.79 (6,933.69)
35l and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 7.4 6,940.9
¢asli and cash equivalents at the end of the year .08 2
Non Cash investing activities
-Acrisition of rightsef-yse-azsots i Rl
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand (refer note 16) o0y g
Balances wilh banks: (refer note 16)
On current accounts (7. X1

- Deposits with original maturity of less than three months X
Patanee witl e-wallet & credit card companies

Hank ovendrafis frsfer ol 2:4)

Tatal carh and cash equivalents =

Notes:

“Flig Stalemint of Cash Flows has been prepared under flie indirect method as set out in the Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows".

Il ibove statement of cash flows should be read in coiijinitinn with the accompanying notes.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Registration No. 304026E/E-300009 Indivinity Clothing Retail Private Limited

——

Sonika Burman ‘Tarun Radhakrishin ikshit
Tahiliani
Director 3
DIN : 00045531 DIN : olfgjeo6h
Partner
Membership No. 504839 Place: Gurugram Place: Mumbai
Place: Gurugram Date: May 05, 2023 Date: May 05, 2023
Date: May 05,2023
L o
deep Pal Yopdsh Sharina Sonia I1h:
“hiel Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Conpany 5

Member No. Azofgo
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram
Date: May 05, 2023 Date: May 05, 2023 Date: May 05, 2023




Indivinity Clothing Retail Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

1. Corporate information

Indivinity Clothing Retail Private Limited (the “Company”), a private company domiciled in India, is
incorporated on March 03, 2021 under the provisions of the Companies Act,2013. The registered office
of the Company is located at P No 708, Sector 37, Pace City II, Gurgoan, Haryana— 122001.

The Company is primarily engaged in manufacturing and trading of readymade garments being men’s
ethnic wear like apparel, jewellery and related accessories. The Company is principally engaged in
business under the brand name TASVA.

The financial statements have been approved and adopted by the Board in their meeting held on May
05, 2023.

2. Significant accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation

(i) Compliance with Ind AS

The Financial Statements comply in all material aspects with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act.

(ii) Historical cost convention

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following which
have been measured at fair value:

o  Defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value.
(ili)) New and amended standards adopted by the Company

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs had vide notification dated 23 March, 2022 notified Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022 which amended certain accounting standards,
and are effective 1 April 2022:

o Ind AS 16, Property, Plant & Equipment - Proceeds before intended use of property, plant and
equipment.

¢ Ind AS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets - Onerous Contracts — Costs
of Fulfilling a Contract.

¢ Ind As 103, Business Combination - Reference to the Conceptual Framework.

e Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments — Fees included in the 10 percent test for derecognition of
financial liabilities.

The amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods
and are not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

(iv) New amendments issued but not effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide notification dated 31 March, 2023 notified Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 (the ‘Rules’) which amends certain accounting standards,
and are effective 1 April, 2023. The Rules predominantly amend Ind AS 12, Income taxes, and Ind AS 1,
Presentation of financial statements. The other amendments to Ind AS notified by these rules are primarily
in the nature of clarifications.

These amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company in the current or future
reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions. Specifically, no changes would be necessary as a




Indivinity Clothing Retail Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

consequence of amendments made to Ind AS 12 as the Company’s accounting policy already complies with
the now mandatory treatment.

2.2 Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements

The preparation of Financial Statements requires the management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and disclosure of contingent
liabilities at the date of the Financial Statements and the results of operations during the reporting
period. The actual results could differ from those estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates iy
recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, the management has made the following
estimates, assumptions and judgements, which have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
Financial Statements:

(a) Property, plant and equipment

The management engages internal technical team to assess the remaining useful lives and residual value
of property, plant and equipment. The management believes that the assigned useful lives and residual
value are reasonable,

(b) Intangible assets

Internal technical or user team assess the remaining useful lives of Intangible assets. The Management
believes that assigned useful lives are reasonable.

(¢) Income taxes

The management’s judgment is required for the calculation of provision for income taxes and deferred
tax assets and liabilities. The Company reviews at each balance sheet date the carrying amount of
deferred tax assets / liabilities. The factors used in estimates may differ from actual outcome which could
lead to significant adjustment to the amounts reported in the Financial Statements,

(d) Contingencies

The management’s judgement is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if Fany, in
respect of contingencies/claim/litigations against the Company as it is not possible to predict the
outcome of pending matters with accuracy.

(e) Allowance for doubtful trade receivables

Trade receivables are stated at their amortised cost as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated
irrecoverable amounts. Individual trade receivables are written off when management deems them not
to be collectible. Impairment is made on the expected credit losses, which are the present value of the
cash shortfall over the expected life of the financial assets.




Indivinity Clothing Retail Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

2.3 Current versus non-current classification

2.4

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current
classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

Cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is treated as current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment loss if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Company, and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any componenl
accounted for as a separate asset is de-recognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss, during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property,
plant and equipment measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost
of the property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis over the useful life
of the asset estimated by the management. Depreciation on additions is provided on a pro rata basis from
the month of installation or acquisition. Depreciation on deletions/ disposals is provided on a pro rata
basis upto the month preceding the month of deletions/ disposals. The management helieves that these
estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are
likely to be used. The Company has used the following rates to provide depreciation on its tangible fixed
assets:




Indivinity Clothing Retail Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(a) Assets where useful life is same as Schedule II

Assets Useful life as prescribed by
Schedule II of the Companies
Act, 2013

Office equipment’s 5 years

Electrical fittings, installations and equipment’s 10 years

(b) Assets where useful life differ from Schedule II

2.5

Assets Useful life as prescribed by | Estimated
Schedule I1 of the Companies | useful life
Act, 2013

Plant and machineries 15 years 20 years

Furniture and fixtures — retail stores 10 years 5 vears

Furniture and fixtures — other than retail 5

St years 7 years

Vehicles 10 years 5years

Computers 3 years for end user devices and 6 | 4 years
vears for servers

Useful life of assets different from that prescribed in Schedule IT has been estimated by the management,
supported by technical assessment. The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the
asset.

Leasehold assets

Assets Estimated useful life
| Leasehold improvements at stores 5 years or period of lease, whichever is lower
Leasehold improvements other than stores Period of lease |

Interiors has been treated as part of leasehold improvements. Therefore, useful life shall be based on
period of lease.

Items of property, plant and equipment individually costing less than five thousand rupees, are
depreciated within one year from the date the asset is ready to use.

Gains or losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount. These are included in the Statement of Profit and Loss within other gains/ losses.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Capital work in progress

Assets in the course of construction are capitalised in capital work in progress account. At the point
when an asset is capable of operating in the manner intended by management, the cost of construction
is transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment. Costs associated with the
commissioning of an asset are capitalised when the asset is available for use but incapable of operating
at normal levels until the period of commissioning has been completed. Capital work in progress is
stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any.
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2.6

2.7

Intangible assets
Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment.

Intangible assets are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment, whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. The amortisation expense on intangible assets is recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss when the asset is de-recognised.

Amortisation methods and periods

A summary of amortisation policies applied to the Company’s intangible assets is as below:

Intangible assets Useful life | Amortisation method used
Computer software 3 years Amortised on straight-line basis
Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception, all arrangements to determine whether they are, or contain,
a lease. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the
Company assess whether:
e The contract involves the use of an identified asset;
e The Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the
asset throughout the period of use; and
e The Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

The Company therefore accounts if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The Company is not a lessor in any transactions, it is
only a lessee.

Company is the lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(i) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date when
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-
use assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives of the assets, as follows:
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(i1) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term, discounted using Company’s incremental
borrowing cost. The lease payments include fixed payments (and, in some instances, in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate,
and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of
penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to
terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses
(unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.

In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if there is a modification arising due
to change in the lease term, change in the lease payments or a change in the assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset. when the lease liability is re-measured in this way, a corresponding
adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

(iii) Short term leases and lease of low value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of equipment
(i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases
of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company is the lessor

For leases considered as finance lease, the original right-of-use asset is reclassified and recognised as Net
Investment in lease and the original lease liability is accounted for based on the accounting for a lease
liability in a finance lease. The finance income is recognised over the period of lease.

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised as income on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining the operating lease are added to
the carrying value of the underlying assets and recognised as expense over the lease term on the same
basis as lease income. The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.

Financial assets
Classification and initial recognition

Financial assets are recognised in the Company’s statement of financial position when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the asset. The Company determines the classification of
its financial assets at initial recognition. The Company classifies the financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

e Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through profit or loss, or through other
comprehensive income)
e Those measured at amortised cost

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will
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depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset (excluding trade receivables which do not
contain a significant financing component) at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
expensed in Statement of Profit or Loss.

B. Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:
a. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL):

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and those
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as
held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term. Derivatives are classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets are
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss when the same are managed by the
Company on the basis of their fair value and their performance is evaluated on fair value basis in
accordance with a risk management or investment strategy of the Company. Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

b. Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

¢. Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI) if these financial
assets are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains
or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit or loss,
When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/ (losses). Interest income from
these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method.

C. Derecognition
A financial asset is derecognised only when

e The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or
e Retains the contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

When the Company has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is
derecognised. Where the Company has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership
of lhe financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.
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2.9

2.10

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not
retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset
is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies simplified approach required by Ind AS 109 Financial
Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of
receivables.

Income recognition - Interest

Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating the effective interest
rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the
financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities of the Company are contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset to
another entity.

The Company’s financial liabilities includes borrowings, lease liability, trade and other payables.
Classification, initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the issue of financial liabilities (other than financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss)
are deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial liability. Financial liabilities
are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (‘EIR’) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised.

De-recognition of financial liability

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or
transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other income or finance cost.

Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of
financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.
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2.11

(a)
(b)

Fair value measurements and hierarchy

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

In the principal market for the asset or liability; or
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use, or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances, and for which
sufficient data are available to measure the fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy based on its nature, characteristics and risks:

Level 1 - inputs are quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement date;

Level 2 - valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and

Level 3 - valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization (based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

2.12 Inventories

Inventories including stores and spares are valued at the lower of cost and the net realisable value. The
Cost of individual items of inventory are determined using weighted average method. Cost of raw
materials and traded goods comprises cost of purchases. Cost of work-in-progress and finished goods
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead
expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of normal operating capacity. Cost of inventories also
include all other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Costs
of purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount

of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
|
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For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral
part of the Company’s cash management.

2.14 Impairment of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped al the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups
of assels (cash-generating unils). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

2.15 Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of

the financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of
recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due
within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.16 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business and reflects group’s unconditional right to consideration (that is, payment is due only
on the passage of time). Trade receivables are recognised initially at the transaction price as they do not
contain significant financing components. The Company holds the trade receivables with the objective of
collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less loss allowance.

2.17 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as other
gains/(losses).

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

2.18 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provision

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the
amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine
the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
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(a)

(b)

(o)

(@

and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recoghised
as interest expense.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past
events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable
estimate of the amount cannot be made. Information on contingent liability is disclosed in the Notes to
the Financial Statements.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense on accrual basis.
Defined contribution plan

The Company makes defined contribution to the Government Employee Provident Fund, which are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, on accrual basis. The Company recognises contribution
payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. The
Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund.

Defined benefit plan - Gratuity

The liability recognised in the balance sheet is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the
end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated
annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The present value is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to
market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to
the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income.
They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

Compensated absences

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed within 12 months
from the end of the year end are treated as short term employee benefits. The obligation towards the
same is measured at the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as a result of the unused
entitlement as at the year end.

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed beyond 12 months
from the end of the year end are treated as other long-term employee benefits. The Company’s liability
is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial
losses/ gains are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise. The
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obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless
of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

(e) Share based payments

Employees of the Group (Companies forming part of Aditya Birla Group) receive remuneration in the
form of equity-settled instruments and stock appreciation rights for rendering services over a defined
vesting period. Equity settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services
are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date using an appropriate valuation
model.

The Group has created an “ABFRL Employee Welfare Trust” (ESOP Trust) and uses it as a vehicle for
distributing shares to employees under the Employee Stock Option Scheme 2019 or any subsequent Stock
Option Scheme. The trust purchase shares of the Company from the market, for giving shares to
employees. The Group treats trust as its extension and shares held by trust are treated as treasury shares.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of
the original estimates, if any, is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the equity settled share options
outstanding account.

For cash-settled share-based payment, a liability is recognised for the goods or services acquired,
measured initially at the fair value of the liability using a binomial method. At the end of each reporting
period until the liability is settled and at the date of settlement, the fair value of the liability is re-measured,
with any changes in the fair value recognised in ‘Employee benefits expense’ in the Statement of Profit
and Loss for the year.

2.20 Foreign currencies

Transactions and balances:

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded applying the exchange rate at the date of transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency, remaining unsettled at the end of the
year, are translated at the closing exchange rates prevailing on the Balance Sheet date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated. The gain or loss arising
on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e. translation differences on items whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) or the Statement of Profit and Loss are
also reclassified in OCI or the Statement of Profit and Loss, respectively).

2.21 Revenue from contract with customers

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of manufacturing and retailing high end garments,
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services is transferred
to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services.
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To recognize revenues, the Company applies the following five-step approach:

Identify the contract with a customer;

Identify the performance obligations in the contract;

Determine the transaction price;

Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and
¢ Recognise revenues when a performance obligation is satisfied.

(i) Sale of goods- wholesale

The Company manufactures and sells a range of readymade garments being men’s ethnic wear like
apparel, jewellery and related accessories to the wholesaler. Sales are recognised when control of the
goods has transferred, being when the products are delivered to the wholesaler, the wholesaler has full
discretion over the channel and price to sell the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could
affect the wholesaler’s acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs when the goods have been shipped to
the specific location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the wholesaler, and
either the wholesaler has accepted the products in accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance
provisions have lapsed, or the group has objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been
satisfied.

Revenue from these sales is recognised based on the price specified in the contract. Revenue is only
recognised to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal will not occur. A refund
liability (included in other current liabilities) is recognised for expected sales return from customers in
relation to sales made until the end of the reporting period. No significant element of financing is deemed
present as the sales are made with a credit term of 30 days, which is consistent with market practice.

(ii) Sale of goods- retail
The Company operates a chain of retail stores selling readymade garments being men’s ethnic wear like
apparel, jewellery and related accessories. Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when a group
entity sells a product to the customer. Payment of the transaction price is due immediately when the
customer purchases the goods and takes delivery in store. The Company doesnot have a return policy for
retail customer and hence no refund liability created in the books for retail sale.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalised as part of
the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Borrowing cost includes interest and other costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of
borrowings.

Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the
borrowing costs.

Taxes
Current tax

The Income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in India.

The management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.
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Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except when the deferred tax
liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or a liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor the
taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except when the deferred tax asset
relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or a liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor the taxable profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date,
and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Current tax and deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the Statement of Profit and Loss are
recognised outside the Statement of Profit and Loss (either in OCI or in equity). Current tax and deferred
tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Segment information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker (CODM). The Board of Directors of the Company is identified as the Chief
Operating Decision Maker ("CODM"), CODM evaluates the performance of the Company based on the
single operative segment for the purpose of allocation resources and.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 41, 2023
(Al sinounts arc in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
Riglit-of-use assets
4 Rigl Mareh g ooey  Marel i, zoes
Right to use asscts (refer note 42) st B AE 608274
2601484 ool oy
Set ont below are the carrying of right-of-use assets d and during the year
Buildings
As atMarch 31, 2021 ] 118.82
Addition . 7,279.36
L Amanrtidtion eagquens 15..
As at March 31, 2022 6,082
Addition 21,569.34
Less: Amortization expensc .20
As at March 31, 2023 26,614.88
Capital work-In-progress Asut As at
P P L] Mlarch gomong — Maveh g, sosw
Capital work-in-progress 301.65 127.81
301.63 127.81
Ageing of Capital Work In Progress (CWIP)
Ax nt Murch goaoay
Partlculars Less than i 1-2 2-3 More than Total
year years years 3 years
Tinjects in progress aonhs
Tutal R L s - E
Particulars Less than 1 1-2 2-3 More than
Yeur Yyears years A vears
Nl 7 - -
6 Other intangible asscts
Particulars Compyter
Cox [
A ut Mareh 1, 2o2y .
Al Additiong 6116
Leess! [Mspoanls
An il Ma ah, 2OEE 61.16
Adddks Adulitions a4.00
At Muwely e wovey
Amnortlantion
As 0t March g1, 2021 =
Akl Amortization for the yoar 1071
Lievst Dhbspeanals H
As ot Murch 31, 2oan 10.71
Axhl: Aresrt b ton for he yelu 20.92
Tessd Ehlwpovali -
At Maveh g seouy Anhy
Netblock
As at March 31,2023 B33
As at March 31, 2022 A5
Note: The Compauny b pod rovalued its intangibile wsets
Asnt As at
ce Le: Recelvabl
72" ElnanceiEenssiieee wpble Mureh o eony  Mavel g1, gose
Finance Lease Receivable 1.042.91
8 Sccurity deposlts Azt

Unsecured - considered good
Sccurity deposits

I
|
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(All omounts are in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

9 Other financial assets

Depasit account with Bank (Origiual Maturity of more than 12 months) 10.57 10,12
10.57 10.12
As at As at

10 Deferred tax assels (net) March 31,2023  March a1, 2022

Deferred tax assels/(liabilitics) A.3054T
3,305.11__ -
Particulars Tax losscs Defined Depreciation | Impact of Ind Other ‘Total T
and benefit and AS 116 K
Unabsorbed |obligations  |amortisation
deprecintion i

At April 1, 2021 = = - = =
(Chargred)/ Crediled

- to statement of profit lnss - - - o
- ta ather ecnmprehensive income = r - = -
As at 31 March 31, 2022 = = A - - -
[(Chrped)/ Creditend
- to stateinent of profit and lass a033.80 4.99 {26.82 258.97 59.44 Hop0.34

- to other comprehensive income (5.23) -_l‘ - = (5.23)
As at Marvch g1, 2023 3,033.80 {0.24) (26.82)] 23R.03 944 440710

As at Asat
March a2y Muarch s, 2os

11 Non-current tax asscts (net)

Income 1ax reccivable han 747
FTINT] .47
As it As at

12 Other non- current assets Miareh §1.400 Maureli 51 -
rili g % roh i, 20
Unsecured - considered good

Capital advance g agfbs

Saga 2805

As at As at

13 Inventorles
S Maveh gigouy  Mareh g1, 2oz

At lower of cost or net realisable value

Raw malerials 816.50 285 00

Sparcs & Consumables 119,15

‘Work-in-progress 76423 911,37 I
Finished goods {includes goods in transit of Rs. 113.95 lakhs (March 31, 2022 189.79 lakhs)} 4,803 52 1,285 62

Traded goods {includes gaods in transit of Rs 2712 lakhs (March 31, 2022 Nil)} Liuoad Er LA i
Total ZibipgH 2ty

Amounts reeagniaed i the statement of peofil snd loss

Weite-duwhs of inventogies 1o net vealisablo v mounted fo B 61,37 lakhs (March 31, 2022 — Rs. 3117 lukhs ). These were recogoised as an expense during the
year and included in ‘changes in value of inventories of work-in-progress, stock-in-trade and finished goods’ in the statement of profit and loss

14 Investments

Investments In mututal fund fair valued through Profit and Loss (Quoted):

11, Mol i a62a g2g8.017 units) 322.34
Aditys Dirls Sun Life Syt Fond- Growth Manch 30, 20230 Muarch 31, 2022: 90, 745 units) . B9 49
Additya Birki Son Life Liquid Prnid { Masgh g, 2000 86l March g, 5023 241,593.084 [TTILEN] 822 47
Total = 1,244.90
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(All amounts are in ¥ Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

15 Trade receivable

As at As at
Particulars March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
Trade receivables from others 160.31 7.39
Total trade receivable 160.a1 Z:39

Break-up for trade receivables:

Trade recelvables

Considered good, secured - .
Considered good, unsecured 160,21 7.39
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk - -
‘Trade receivables - credit impaired . =

160.31 739
Aging of trade reeelvables
As ot Murely g oy
itstanding for the following years from doe date
Particulars Not Due Less than 6 months - 1-2 2-3 More than
6 months 1year years years 3 years Total

Undisputed Tramde reveivibles

= eonaldered pood = 160,31 £ = =] - 160
- which have significant increase
in_credit risk = E

- crod it impaired : * x - 2 = E
Total Trade receivaliles = 16031 - + = - 16041
Aging of trade reccivables
As ot Murch jpp, 2o

Ot tanding foe the following
Particulars Not Due Less than 6 months - 2-3 More than
& months 1year vears years ayears fotal

- oo ired good = s - - 5 = P
- which have significant increase s
in credit risk

- credit b paired = - - = . - -
Totul Trade recvivihles - 740 - -~ - -

No trade receivables are due from directors or other officers of the Company cither severally or jointly with any other person.

Trade reccivables are non-interest bearing and are gencrally on terms of 3o days.

The Company creates allowance for a}l trade receivables based on lifetime expecled credit loss model (ECL). The maxirnum expasure o credit risk at the reporting
date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets The Company does not hold collateral as security. Based on the evaluation made by the management, no
expectad credit loss has been recognised in the current year and previous year.

As at

16 Cash and cash equivalents
woy

goag

Balances with bank:

-On current accounts 6.64 684

-Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 148.64 -
Cash on hand 049 045
Balance with e-wallet & credit card companies 16,84 -
Total 172.31 7,20

o As at As at
17 Bank balance other than (lii) above Marchia: Y2023 =Marchias sz
Balances with bank:

-Deposits with original maturity of more Ihan three months and less than one year - 3390

=) 23.90

As at
March 31, 2022

18 Security Deposits
Unsecured - considered good

Security deposits - Atagd
Total = 11.44

19 Other financial asscts

Unsecured - considered good

Interest accrued on fixed deposits 0.79 0.79
Other receivables 4z 86 6.02
4,05 o

As at As at

20 Other current assets

Moveh gieoes  March g, 2ot

Iinsetared - compsidereld gl

Righ! to recover returnied goods (refer note 31) 54.48

Prepaid expenses 41.08 4313
Balance with government authorities 2,301,37 59138
Adhance to suppliers 68.24 8g.21

2,465.17 . 723.72
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(All amounts are in ¥ lakhs, except share data and per share data, and unless otherwise stated)

21

a

-~

b

(=2

C

~

d)

e)

Equity share capital

Authorized share ¢apital No. of Shares Amount
Equity shures of £ 10 gach

At Murch 31, 2021 40,000,000 4,000.00
Increase during the year - -
Al March 31, 2022 40,000,000 4,000.00
Increase during the year 25,000,000 2,500.00
At March 31,2023 - 65,000,000 6,500.00
Lssued shave capital No. of Shares Amount
Fully paid up

Equity shares of ¥ 10 each issued and subscribed

At March 31, 2021 35,000,000 3,500.00
Increase during the year - -
At March 31, 2022 35,000,000 3,500.00
Increase during the year 24,049,707 2,404.97
At March 31,2023 59,049,707 5,904.97
Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote
per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by
the shareholders.

Shares held by Holding Company
As at As at
March 31,2023  March 31, 2022

Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited (Holding Company) 47,239,761 27,999,995
47,239,761 (March 31, 2022: 27,999,995) equity shares of Rs 10 each

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Numb W Holding Number Y6 Holding
Eauitv shares
Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited 47,239,761 80.00% 27,999,995 80.00%
Tarun Tahiliani 11,800,041 20.00% 7,000,000 20.00%

59,049,702 100.00% 34,999,995 100.00%
Details of Shareholding of Promoters:
Shares held by promoters as at March 31,2023

% of total % Change durin
Name of the Promoter No. of Shares number of th ange during
shares eysan
Tamn Tahiliani 11,800,941 20,00% -
Aditva Birla Fashion and Retail Limited 47,220,761 80.00% -
Shares held by promoters as at March 31, 2022
% of total % Change duri
Name of the Promoter No. of Shares number of the ::f uring
shares ¥y

Tarun Tahiliani 7.000,000 20.00% -
Aditva Birla Fashion and Retail Limited 27,000,005 80.00% -

There were no shares issued for consideration other than cash during the year ended March 31,2023 and year ended March 31, 2022.
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(All amounts are in % lakhs, except share data and per share data, and unless otherwise stated)

22 Other Equity

Securities premium
Retained earnings
Total

(i) Securities premium
At March 31, 2021
Premium on issuesof shares
At Maich 31, 2022 i
Premium on issue of shares
At March 31,2023

(if) Retained earnings

At March 31, 2021

‘Loss for the year

Re-measurement Profit on defined benefit plan
At March 31, 2022

Loss for the year

Re-measurement Profit on defined benefit plan
At March 31,2023 o

As at Asat .
March g1,2023  March g1, 2022
1246702 3,491.18
(4,881.83) (4,128.96)
2,585.19 362,22
Amount
3,49118

(72.33)

(3,059.11)
.48
3,128.96

[6,768.41)

-]

S— 1 .
(9,881.83)
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As at As at

23 Borrowings

Non-current

Secured

Term Loan from Bank (L0000 -
3:300.00 -

Term loan has been takcn from ICICI Bank which is secured by way of charge over movable Property, plant and equipment

of the Company. The loan is repayable in 10 cqual quarterly instalments starting from quarter ended September 2024.The

Rate of interest on loan is 1 year Marginal Cost of Funds-based Lending Rate (MCLR) per annum.

Current

Secured

Demand Loan from Bank 1,000.00

Bank Overdraft 136.23

Total 1,106,004

Demand loan has been taken from ICIC] Bank in two tranches of Rs. 500 lacs each. The same are secured by First Pari-
Passu charge on all current assets and second pari-passu charge on movable property, plant and equipment of the Company.
The loan was originally payable repayable on April 18, 2023 end May 2, 2023 which is further extended till July 17, 2023 and
July 10, 2023 respectively. The Rate of interest on loan is Repo Rate plus spread of 2 05% per annum.

Bank overdrafi has been taken from JCIC] Bank which is secured by First Pari-Passu charge on all current assets and second
pari-passu charge on movable property, plant and equipment of the Company. The loun is repayable on demand. The Rale
of interest on loan is 6 months Marginal Cost of Funds-based Lending Rate (MCLR) + 1 % spread per annum.

There ks i thefault in repig et of loan fustullments o vttt of Dinterest tenedn as pos e ferms aned eondithones uf loay Taken from related party.
1. The Carinpany s registored satisfied ull the chit T i e statatory porind.
2, The Company han tsod Hie horrovcings from banks amd fsanial istitations for the specifie purposs foe which it was taken,

As nt Asak

March 31,2023 March 21, 2022
Net Debt reconclliation

Cash and cash equivalents 172.31 7.29
Non- current borrowings (za00.0n) .
Current borrowings (1,1536.29] =
Lease Liabilities {0876.73) (razz8y)
Net Debt (lifseq0.65) (165:54)
= As at As at
24 Leasc liabiliti
d) Leasellabilities March 31,2023 March a1, 2022
Non Current
Lease linbilities 27,077.64 6,659.36
27-077.64 6,%
The following is the lease liabiliti t Asat Asat
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Balance at beginning of the year 7,172.83 119.52
Additions during the year 22,667,294 7,279.36
Finance cost incurred during the year (refer note 36) 1,479.14 268.54
Payment of lease linbjlities (2,542.48) (494.59)
Balance at end of the year 28,776.73 7,12.83
Non Current (refer note 24) 27,077.64 6,659.36
Current (refer nole 27) 1,699.09 51348
28,776.73 Z,172.84
. As at As at
25 Other financial llabilitics March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Non-current
Security deposits 120,88
Others PRI -
196.78 E
As at As at
26 Employce benefit obligations March 31,2023 Murch 31, gons
Non-current
Provision for gratuity (refer nole 49) 52.38 44.97
Provision for slock appreciation right (refer note 50} 30.07 1769
Provision for Employee stock option plan (refer note 50) .27 e Al
153.72 139.77
As at As at
27 Leasc liablilties March 31,2023 March 81, 2022
Current
Leasc liabilities ___1,699.09

1,699.09
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As at As at
Trade Payables March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Total outstanding dues of micro enterpriscs and small enterpiises 36,69 27184
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enteypirinss and small enterprises 4,614.26 1,384.56
Totkal 4.650.25 1,65640
Aging of irade payable
As at March g1.2003
0 s oy Maveh ga,uouy from due date of payment
Particul d d
articulars Unbilles Notdue | Lessthan1 12 Years 2-3 Yoars More than 3 Total
Yenr Years
Undisputed trade paynbles
Micro enterprises and sinall enterpriscs = 144 5.25 R . 36.69
Others LIOA57 L5331 105360 1750 - - afigah
‘Fotal 1,105.77 |,ﬁf.ll.h§ '-ﬂﬂ‘“ 1750 - - 4,650.95
Aggelng of trade payable
As ab Maveli i, 2022
Qutstandling in on Mareli 41, 2022 froin dus dale of payiment
Particulars Unbllled Not due
n v Lessthant | oo o 2-3 Years More than 3 Total
Year Years
Unelisprivted twade payahles
Micro enterprises and small enterprises o ey = 271.84
Othwin b1 08 a1y 77 gol.z1 - - 138450 |
Total uh 08 23454 1460, 7H = = = 165640

Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, (MSWMED] whtich ciniv inta furie from Octobar 2, 2006, vertain dinclosure are roqitired 10 be
made relating to Micro and Small Enterprises. On the hasis of the information mmil revimls availalili witl the managemen), there are outstamling dues to the Micto and
Small Enterprises under MSMED Act, 2006.

Due ta Micro small and medium istappais=:

N As at As at
Parti
articulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Frmcipal amemint dise to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end. 26.60 271.84
Titerest due bo supphiors reglstorad wnder e MSMELD Actand remainieg wnpaid s i yer el 12.22 1292
Prameipal aaneunts puaid 4 suppiiees regbtered nder the MSMED Act, beyand the dppointed duy ngg this vear. - 17764
Tonterest gl upiler Section 16 of MSMED Act, 1o supplices registerd iidar Bie MSMED Act, beyoni the appoiited day
during the year.
Titere=) il other B wndee Seclion 16 (f MSMED Act, tosmpplives pegglitered iider the MEMEL Act, Lseyvinad tha
appititesl tay during the year. i =
Amount of interest due and payable for Lhe year of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act. - 849
“The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting year, 1232 83
‘Amount of further interest remaining due and payuble cven in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues
above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of di ofad bl di under section 23
of the MSMED Act
" e As at As at
Ol fi bilit
ther financial lablilities March 31,2023 March a1, 2022
Current
Credilors for capital supplies/ services 1,057.33 59954
Employee benefits payable 32121 117.00
1.478.54 "iﬁ.i’
As at As at

Employee benefit obligations Mareh i sy Mareh g1, gumy

Provision for gruluity (refer note 49) 360 10.35
Provision for 1 ab 10724 g
oy B

The enlire amount of provision of Rs, 107 24 lakhs (March 31, 2022 - Rs. 71.54 Lakhs) is presented as current, since the Company does not have an unconditional right to
dcfer scttlement for any of these obligations. However, based on past experience, the Company docs not expect all employees to ayail the full umount of accrued leaves or
require payment for such leave within the next 12 months.

Leave obligation not expected to be settled within the next 12 months 87.96 58.51
e As at As at

Other current labilitics Mareh 21,2023 March a1, 2022

Current

Refund liability E3ah

Statutory liabilities 1By [
ST 7.0

Refund llabilities

Where a ciustomer has o right to return  product within s given ) ear, the Compuny recognises a refund liability for the amount of the revenue recognised for
which the entity docs not expect to be entitled Rs. 123.36 Lakhs (March 31, 2022:- Nil) . The Company also recognises right to recover the returned goods for
Rs. 54.48 Lakhs (Murch 31, 2022: Nil), See Note 20. The cosls to recover the products are not material as the customers usually return them in o saleable condition.
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33

34A

34B

34C

Revenue from operations

Sale of goods

Other operating revenue
Sale of scrap

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price

Revenue as per contracted price
Adjustments for:
Refund liability

Other income

Interest income

- on fixed deposits

Unwinding of discount on security deposits
Net gain from investments in mutual funds
Miscellaneous income

Total

Cost of raw materials consumed

Inventories at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases during the year
Less: Inventories at the end of the year

Changes in inventories of work in progress, stock in trade and finished goods

Opening inventories
‘Work-in-progress
Finished goods
Traded goods

Closing inventories
‘Work-in-progress
Finished goods

Traded goods
Right to recover returned goods

Changes in inventories
Purchases of traded goods

Traded goods

Year ended March  Year ended March
31,2023 31, 2022
4,928.74 156.90
2 0.0
4,928.74 156.94
Year ended March  Year ended March
31,2023 31, 2022
5,052.10 156.94
(124.36) -
4&28.74 156.94
Year ended March  Year ended March
31,2023 31, 2022
8.56 71.56
106.26 773
14.55 103.13
18.40 -
147.27 182.42
Year ended March  Year ended March
41,2023 31, 2022
285.00 -
1,976.62 2,084.34
816.50 285.00
i 12 1,709.34
Year ended March  Year ended March
31,2023 31, 2022
911.37 =
1,285.62 =
215.22 -
2,412.21 -
764.23 911.37
4,803.52 1,285.62
1,190.18 215.22
54.48 =
B B1z.q1 2,412.21
(4,400.20) (_E‘im.:nj
Year ended March  Year ended March
31,2023 31, 2022
1,197.67 hd

1,197.67
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35 Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wiges and allowances

Contribution to provident fund (refer note 49)
Gratuity expenses (refer note 49)

Staff welfare expense

Pravision for stock option plans (refer note 50)
Total

36 Finance costs

Interest on:

- Lease liabilities

- Working capital loan
- Term Loan

Total

37 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 3)
Amortisation of right-tif-use assets (refer note 4)
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 6)

Total

38 Other expenses

Processing charges

Transportation charges

Store consumables

Advertisement and sales promotion

Rent

Legal and professional charges (refer note below)
Repair and maintenance

-Others

Travelling and conveyance

Security & Housekeeping expenses

Telephone and Internet expenses

Rates and taxes

Insurance

Printing and stationary

Power, fuel and water charges

Bank charges

Courier charges

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Miscellaneous expenses

Total

Note : Auditor remuneration
Particulars

As auditor:
- Audit fee
- Out of pocket expenses

Year ended March  Year ended March
31,2023 31, 2022
1,926.25 685.84
65.49 21.55
24.26 10.97
67.23 12.43
7.83 .86
_glggl.ué 781.65
Year ended March  Year ended March
31,2023 31, 2022
1,479.14 268.54
232,73 '
120 -
1,788.16 20854
Year ended March  Year ended March
31,2023 31, 2022
474.91 49.51
1,937.20 415.44
20.92 10,71
2,433.03 475:00
Year ended March  Year ended March
31,2023 31, 2022
3,698.91 902.91
91.56 16.64
140.89 15.35
3,922.37 488.82
167.25 86.26
1,587.40 759.74
195.51 24.98
322.00 82.83
164.15 30.25
6.60 0.77
4.48 23.50
10.67 0.52
21.19 8.26
235.52 23.08
61.05 0.38
22.66 8.86
1.93 =
h.uoR 12,94
10, 660,42 2,485.49
Year ended March  Year ended March
31,2023 31, 2022
6.60 6.00
0.90 0,50
2:50 6:50_
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39 Income tax expense

40

The major components of income tax expense for the year/year ended

a. Tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss

Year ended March  Year ended March

Particulars
31,2023 31, 2022

Current income tax:
Current income tax charge - z
Deferred tax:

(Gains)/losses relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (3,310.34) -
Income tax effect on above 5:23
(:3:305.11) =

I tax (i )/exp T ised in the t of profit or loss

b. Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate

Year ended March  Year ended March

Particulars
31,2023 31, 2022
Loss before tax (10,078.75) (3,059.11)
Tax at the Indian tax rate of 25.168% (Previous year: 25,168%)
Tax (2,536.82) (769.98)
Impact of deferred tax nol created on lemporary differences 769.98
Impact of deferred tax created unabsorhied losses and deépreciation of previous year (769.98) -
Tax effect of amotnts which are nol lemporary in nature
-others (9.54) -
(3310.34) -
Comp ts of other prehensive i ©cn Year ended March  Year ended March
31,2023 31, 2022
Re-measurement gain on defined benefit ohligation 20.77 2.48
Income tax effect (5.23) -
Total 15.54 2.48
Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the loss for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding duting the yeat.

Diluted EFS amounts are caleulated by dividing the loss attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number ol Equity shares
outstanding during the year phas the welghled average number of Equity shares that would be igsued on conversion of #ll the dilutive putential
Equity shares into Equity shares.

The following rellects the loss and share data Year ended March  Year ended March
used for the hasic and diluted EPS camputation: 31,2023 31, 2022
Loss attributable to equity holders for basic earnings (6,768.41) (3,059.11)
Weighted average number of equity shares 43,565,649 35,000,000
Basic earnings per share (15.54) (8.74)
Diluted earnings per share (15.54) (8.74)

Note: There are no diluted instruments.
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42

®

(ii) The following are the amounts recognized in profit or loss:

Commitments and contingencies

Capital Commitment
The Company has capital commitments of Rs. 513.31 Lakhs as at March 31,2023. (March 31, 2022: Rs.345.82 Lakhs)

Leases
The Company has entered into agreements for taking on the lease office buildings/stores. Leases of office buildings/stores
generally have lease terms from 3 to 21 years with escalation clauses in the lease agreements.

The amounts recognized in Balance Sheet: As at Asat
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Right-of-use assets (refer note 4) 26,614.88 6,082.74

Lease Liabilities

Non Current (refer note 24) 27,077.64 6,659.35

Current (refer note 27) 1,699.09 513.48

Year ended March  Year ended March

31,2023 31, 2022
Interest expense on lease liabilities (refer note 36) 1,479.14 268.54
Depreciation expense for right-of-use assets (refer note 37) 1,037.20 415.44

3,416.34 683.08
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses) 167.25 86.26

(iii) The Company has used the following practical expedient:

Accounting for operating leases with a remaining lease term of less than 12 months treated as short-term leases.

(iv) Extension and Termination option:

)

Extension and Termination oplions are included in all the contracts of short term lease and both are exercisable at mutual
consent of Lessor and Lessee.

Sublease:

The Company subleased few leases, the same were orginally considered as finance lease, the original right-of-use asset is
reclassified and recognised as Finance Lease Receivable and the original lease liability is accou nted for based on the
accounting for a lease liability in a finance lease. The finance income is recognised over the period of lease. O

The amounts recognized in Balance Sheet: Year ended March  Year ended March
21,2023 21, 2022

Finance Lease Receivable 1,097.91 -
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a.

a)

Related party disclosures

Related parties

Description of relationship

Names of related parties

Holding Company

Key management personnel ("KMP")

(a) Chief Designing Officer
(b) Chief Executive Officer
(¢) Executive Directors

(d) Chief Financial Officer
(e) Company Secretary

Entity jointly controlled by the Holding

Company

Parties where KMP exercises control

Transactions with related parties

Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited

Mr. Tarun Radhakrishin Tahiliani
Mr. Sandeep Pal

Mr. Ashish Dikshit

Mr. Sooraj Bhat

Mr. Sunirmal Talukdar

Ms. Sukanya Kripalu

Mr. Yogesh Sharma

Ms, Sonia Bhandari

Goodview Fashion Private Limited

Tahiliani Design Private Limited
Hope Apparels Private Limited

Transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year/year end are unsecured
and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables.

The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties for the relevant financial year:

Year ended March 31,2023 Year ended March 21, 2022
Party Entity jointly Party -
Holding KM where KMP controlled by Holding KM where KMP Entity jointly
Company E exercises the Holding Company E excercises contl:olled by the
Holding Compan;
control Company control g pany
Loans received 9,153.60 - - 100.00 - - - z
Loan repayment made (9,153.60) - - (100.00) - = E 5
Interest expense 156.42 - - 0.05 = = - =
Legal and professional charges 100.00 219.05 . 77.70 - 150.00 -
Rent paid - - 3.00 - - - 18.00 -
Reimbursement of expenses 134.95 - - 48.56 336.83 - = 200.64
Purchase of Raw material 256.16 - - 5.63 163.13 - - 15.38
Sale of goods . . - 0.65 - . - 3.45
Issue of equity shares 8,994.59 2,404.97 = B = = R .

. Outstanding balances

The following table provides the closing balances of related parties for the relevant financial year:

As al March 31,2023 As at March 31, 2022
Party Entity jointly Party . o
Holding where KMP controlled by Holding where KMP Entity jointly
KMP a d 5 KMP i cantrolled by the
Company excercises the Holding Company exeercises oo o =
control Company control g LCompiuny
Trade payables 0.34 - - 28.96 327.56 - 1.61 57.21
Employee Benefits Payable 78.11 - 1.61 - - 13.50 = -

44 Segment information
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker (CODM). The Board of Directors of the

Company is identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM"), CODM evaluates the performance of the Company based on the single operative segment for the
purpose of allocation resources and evaluating financial performance.

The Company is domiciled in India and revenue comes from India only. There are no assets held by the Company outside India.
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46 Fair values

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at March 31,2023 and March 31, 2022.

Fair value

FVTPL TVIOCI Amortsed Total Carrying  Level 1 Level 2 Level g
As at March 31,2023
Financial assets
Investments - - - - - - -
Security deposits - - 1,016.62 1,016.62 - - -
Trade receivables - - 160.31 160.31 -
Cash and cash equivalents - 172.31 172.31 - - -
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents - - - - - - &
Other financial assets - - 54.22 54.22 - - E
Total - - 1,402.46 1,402.46 - = B
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - - 4,636.23 4,636.23 - - -
Lease liabilities - - 28,776.73 28,776.73 - - -
Trade payables - - 4,650.95 4,650.95 - - -
Other financial liabilities - - 1.575:.32 1,575.32 - -
Total - - 20,649.23 P 5 3 -
Fair value
FVTPL FVTOCI A“‘g‘:s‘tsed T°t"lv‘;‘i“‘:y'“g Level1  Level2 Level3
As at March 31, 2022
Financial assets
Investments 1,234.30 - - 1,234.30 1,234.30 - z
Security deposits - = 336.59 336.59 : " =
Trade receivables - - 7.39 7.39 - -
Cash and cash equivalents - - 7.29 7.29 = = 5
Bank halanice other than cash and cash equivalents - = 33.90 33.90 ¢ - i
Other financial assets - < 17.84 17.84 - - -
Total 1,224.30 = 403.01 1,637.2 1.224.20 2 -
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities - - 7:172.83 7,172.83 * - -
Trade payables - - 1,656.40 1,656.40 - = -
Other financial liabilities - ¥ 716,54 716.54 - - -
Total = = 9,545.77 9.545-77 E = -

The ahove table also explains the judgments and estimates made in determining the fair vidlues of the financial instruments that are measured at
amortized cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the F inancial Statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inpufs
ised in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels preseribed under the Indian Aceounting

Standard, An explanation of each level follows underneath,

Level 1: Fair value of financial instruments traded in active market is based

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active marke!
the use of ohservable market data and rely us little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all

{nistrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.
Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable 1

There are no transfer between levels during the year.

on quoted market price at the end of the reporting year.

warket data, the instrument is included in level 3.

t i determined using valuation techniques which maximize
significant inputs required to fair value an
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47 Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise of lease liabilities, trade payables and employee related payables. The main
purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations and to provide guarantees to support its aperations. The
Company's principal financial assets include trade and ather receivables, and cash and cash equivalent that derive directly from its
operations. The Company does not enter into derivative transactions.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of
these risks. The Company’s senior management is responsible to ensure that Company's financial risk activities which are governed by
appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordanee with the Company's
policies and risk ohjectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised
below.

(i) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.
Market risk comprises two types of risk: interest rate risk and currency risk.

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022

The sensitivity analyses have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating interest rates of the
debt as at March 31, 2023.

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement
obligations and provisions.

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the
financial assets and financial liabilities held at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.

(a) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Company has debt obligations with floating interest rates, hence, is exposed to interest rate risk.

Interest rate sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of borrowings affected.
With all other variables held constant, the Company’s loss before tax is affected through the impact on borrowings, as follows:

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Basis points (%) 0.50% increase | 0.50% decrease | 0.50% increase 0.50% decrease
Increase/ (decrease) on logs before tax 23.18 (23.18) = =

The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable market environment,
showing a significantly higher volatility than in the prior years.

(b) Foreign currency risk
The Company is not exposed to foreign currency risk as at reporting date.

(ii) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that eounterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a
financial loss. To manage this, the Company yearically assesses financial reliability of customers and other counterparties, laking into
acconnt the financial condition, current economic trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of financial assets. Individual
risk limits are set and yearically reviewed on the basis of such information. Credit risk from balances with banks and financial
institutions is managed by the Company's treasury department in accordance with the Company’s policy. Investments of surplus funds
are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty.

The Company only deals with parties which has good credit rating given by external rating agencies or based on the Company’s internal
assessment.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonabile expectations of recovery, such as a debtor failing lo engage in a repayment
plan with the Company. Where loans or receivables have been written off, the Company continues to engage in enforcement activity to
attempt to recover the receivable dues where recoveries are made, these are recognised as income in the Statement of Profit and Loss,
The Company is exposed to eredit risk fromiits operaling activities (primarily trade receivables and security deposits).
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(a) Trade receivables

Customer credit tisk is managed as per the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk
management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on an extensive credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits are
defined in accordance with this assessment, Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored.

The majority of the sales of the Company happens in cash The Company does not have significant trade receivables. An impairment
analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients, The calenlation is based on exchange losses
historical data. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed
Dbelow. The Company does not hold collateral as security. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade
receivables as Tow on the basis of past default rates of its customers.

(b) Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the Company's policy.
Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty.
Counterparty eredit limits are reviewed by the Company's Board of Directors on an annual basis, and may be updated throughout the
vear subject to approval of the Company’s finance committee. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore
mitigate financial loss through counterparty's potential failure to make payments.

(iii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting financial obligations due to shortage of funds. The
Company's financing activities are managed centrally by maintaining an adequate level of cash and eash equivalents to finance the
Company's operations. The Company has substantial trade receivable balanee which is expected to be recovered within 12 months. The
Company also uses cash credit and bank loans as a mode of funding, The Company manages its surplus funds centrally by placing them
with reputable financial institution with high credit rating and no history of default.

The below tables summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual payments (undiscounted
basis):

Less than 1 110 5 years More than 5 Total
year years
As at March 31,2023
Trade payables 4,650.95 - - 4,650.95
Borrowings 1,136.23 3,500.00 - 4,636.23
Lease liabilities 4,204.16 22.539.72 19,429.26 46,173.14
Other financial liabilities 1,378.54 196.78 - 1,575.32
11!362.88 26,236.50 10.4290.26 57.035.64
Less than 1 O More than 5 Total
vear vears
As at March 31, 2022
Trade payables 1,656.40 - - 1,656.40
Lease liabilities 1,071.42 6,090.95 2,945.10 10,107.47
Other financial liabilities 716.54 - - 716.54
3.444.36 ©,090.95 2 .10 12,480.

Capital management

The Company's objective, when managing capital is to ensure the going concern operation and to maintain an efficient capital structure
to reduce the cost of capital, support the corporate stralegy and meet shareholder's expectations. The poliey of the Company is to borrow
through bunks/ financial institutions supparted by committed borrowing facilities to meet anticipated funding requirements, The
Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in the light of changes in economic conditions and the requirement of
financial markets.

The capital structure is governed by policies approved by the Board of Directors, and is monitored by various metrics. Funding
requirements are reviewed yearically with any debt issuances.
Sinee, the entity is entively funded through equity, it is not required to compute the capital gearing ratio.

.,
(2
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Defined Contribution and Defined benefit Plans

A. Defined contribution plans

(i) Employers' contribution to Provident Furid

‘The Company hns defined contribution planin form of Provident Fund for qualifying employees, Contributions are made Lo provident
fumd for employees al the rate of 12% of salary as per regulations, The ¢ontributions are matle W Employee Provident Fund
Organisation (EPFO) registered provident fund administered by the Government of mdia. The abligation of the Company is limited to
the mmount contributed and it has no further contractual or constructive obligation.

The expense recognised during the year towards defined contribution plan is Rs. 65.49 Lakhs (March 31, 2022: Rs. 21.55 Lakhs)

B. Defined benefit plans

The Company operates gratuity plan threugh o Trust wherein every emplogee is entitled to the benefil squivalent Lo fifteen doys s
Last drawn for each completed year of service, The same is payable on termination of service or relivement, whichever is earlier. I
benefit vests afler five years of continuous service. In case of some employees, the Company's scheme is more favourable as compared
{0 thie obligation under Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, A part of the gratuity plan is funded und another part is managed within the
Company, hence the liability has been bifurcated into {unded and unfunded.

The following tables summarises the components of net benefit expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and Balance
Sheet for the respective plans:

Changes in the Defined Benefit Obligations (DBO) are as follows:
Year ended March  Year ended March

31,2023 31, 2022
Defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the year . 55.32 -
Current service cost 19.58 8.74
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 4.68 2.23
Changes in financial assumptions (3.02) (2.58)
Experience adjustments (17.75) 0.10
Benefits paid (15.38) -
Acquisition adjustment 114,55 46.83
Closing defined benefit obligation at the end of year 53:98 8532
Classification of Defined benefit obligation
Current 3.60 10.35
Non-current 52.38 44.97

Netb fit expense recognised through the Statement of Profit and Loss and other other comprehensive income

Total exp recognised in the Stat t of Profit or Loss
Year ended March  Year ended March
31,2023 31, 2022

Current service cost 8.74
Past servics cosl -
Net interest cost/(income) on the net defined benefil liabilily/(asset) 2,29
Total Fxpenst recognised under employee benefils expenst (refer note 35) 10.97
Total expenses recognised in the other comprehensive income

Changes in demographic assumptions = y

Changes in financlal assumptions (3.02) (2.58)

Experience adjustments (17.75) 0.10

Total (20.77) (2:48)
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(iii)

i)

)

(i)

(vii)

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity defined benefit obligations for the Company are shown below:

Year ended March  Year ended March

31,2023 31, 2022
Discount rate 7.45% 6.90%
Salary Growth rate 8.00% 8.00%
Retirement age 60 60
Attrition rate
Upto 30 Years 18.00% 18.00%
31-40 Years 15.00% 15.00%
Above 40 Years 10.00% 10.00%
Mortality rate 100% of IALM 2012-14 100% of IALM 2012-14

The following represents expected cash flow profile for the defined benefit plan in future years :

Year ended March  Year ended March
31,2023 31,2022

‘Within the next 12 months 3.60 7.01
Between 2 and 5 years 19.21 19.34
Between 6 and 10 years 25.97 20.48
Beyond 10 years Ba.75 7249
Total 131.53 119.32
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possilile changes of the assumptions oecurring at the end of
the reporting year, while holding all other assumptions constant. The results of sensitivily analysis is given below:

Impact of defined benefit obligation - increase/ (decrease)

Year ended March  Year ended March

31,2023 31, 2022
Defined Benefit obligation (Base) 55.98 55.32
As at March 31,2023 As at March 31, 2022
Decrease Increase Decrease Increase
Sensitivity level
Discount rate (-/+ 0.5%) 2.73 (2.54) 258 (2.39)
Salary growth rate (-/+ 0.5%) (2.54) 2.71 (2.38) 2.54
Attrition rate (-/+ 50%) 15.33 (7.72) 13.14 (5.24)
Mortality rate (-/+ 10%) (0.07) 0.07 (0.05) 0.05

This abivie sensitivity analyses are based on a chanpe i an assumplion while holding all athier assumplions constant. In practice, this
is unlikely to ocenr, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When caleulating the sensitivity of the defined benelit
abligation 1o significant actuarlal assumplions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation caleulated with the
projected unit eredit melhod 4t the end of the repolting vear) hias been applied os when caleulating the Defined henefit recognised in
the balance sheet, The methods and types of assumptions used in preparation, the sensitivity analysis did not change compared (o the
prior year.

Risk Exposures
Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:

Salary Increases: Actual salary increases will increase the Plan’s liability. Increase in salary increase rate assumption in future
valuations will also increase the liability.

Investment Risk: If Plan is funded then assets linbilities mismatch & actual investment return on assets lower than the discount rate
assumed at the last valuation date can impact the liability.

Discount Rate: Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan's liability.

Defined benefit liability and employer contribution

The Company monitors the dificit In defined hinefit obligation and endevouirs to meet such deficit within reasonable future. The
objective is to ensure adequi|e invistments of funds, at appropriate time, (o generate sufficient corpus for future payments.
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50 Equity Settled share option plan

The 15h, ized in Bal Sheet:

o As at As at
Lol March 21,2023 March 31, 2022
Provision for Employee stock option plan (Refer table (i) below) 7127 77.11
Provision for stock appreciation right (Refer table (i) below) A0.07 17.69
Total 101.34 94.80

The ts T ized in t of Profit & Joss

Particulars Yearended March 31,2028 Yo" ended Mareh
41, 2023

Provision for stock option plans 7.83 50.86

Total 7.Bg [o0.86

(i) Employee stock option plan

Aditya Birla Fashions and Retail Limited (Holding Company) has implemented a share option plan for the members of
eonveris into one ordinary shate of Aditya Birla Fashions and Retail Limited on exercise. Options are forfeited if the employee leaves the Company hefore the options vest. The
allocatinn of share aption plan has heen made by the Holding €
introduction of Employes Stock Optian Scheme, viz,
Stock Options in the form of Options (*Options”) and,

luding of the C

y. Each share option

, e N ion and Re ation Committee and the Board of Directors ("Board™), approved

Aditya Birla Foshion and Retail Limited Bmployes Stoek Option Stheme 2019 (“Scheme 2o107) through trust route, for issue of
Jor Restricted Stock Units ("RSUs") to the identified employees of the Company. Refer below far the detadls of Plan. The shores

will beissued post payment of cansideration to Aditys Birla Fashions and Retail Limited and hence thie same hos been treated as finbility.

5 A As at March 31

ESOP Plans details Grant Date | Vesting Date | Exercise date ‘(I::t;zg:::;) Fm(; v:‘l) ‘:le o & ?:Ma;csl;ial,zozgg 2022 )
B 1on (NoZot Shares) (No. of Shares)
ESOP- Tranche 1 <15t Vesting a-Digc-2019 2-Dec-zos0 2-Dec-2025 12 g9b.90 15,000
ESOP- Tyl 1~ 21d Vesting 2 Do 26019 g-Dec-4021 3-Nec-2026 24 110.10 | 10,455 15,000
ESOP- Tranche 1- 3rd Vesting 2-Dec-2019 2-Dec-2022 2-Dec-2027 a6 115.76 10,455 15,000
ESOP-Tranche 1 - 4th Vesting 2-Dec-2019 2-Dec-2023 1-Dec-2028 48 125.24 10,455 15,000
ESOP-Tranche 3- ist Vesting 21-Jan-2021 | 23-Tan-2022 | 21-Jan-2027 12 76.78 14957 6.346
ESOP-RSU- Tranche 1- Bullet Vestir 2-Dec-2019 2-Dec-2022 2-Dec-2027 36 216.18 11,558 18,593
Total 57,880 84,929

(ii) Stock Appreciation Rights
Aditya Birla Fashions and Retal Limited (Holding Company) has implemented SAR- Stock appreclation Rights a share option plan for the bers of senior By

. The SARs

iom eost 1s amartised an 4 stralght-line basis over the total vesting year ; Options are forfeited if the employee leaves the Company

including of the €

before the options vest. The granting of Stock Appreciation Tights (

“5ARs") has been made by the Holding Company to the eligible employees of the Company, the Nomination and

Remuneration Committee approved plan as on November 03, 2021, 'The shires will be issued post payment of consideration to Adiya Birla Fashions and Retail Limited and henee

the same has been treated as liability,

. A As at March 31,
SAR Plan Details Grant Date | Vesting Date | Exercise date Vesting year | Fair Va‘xlue of| As at March 31,2023 2022
(In Months) Options (No. of Shares)
(No. of Shares)
| SAR's- Trariche 2 - 184 Vesting 18-Aug-2021 | 18-Aug-2022 | 18-Aug-2025 12 67.66 10,455 17,728|
|SAR's- Tranche 2 - and Vesting 18-Aug-2021 | 18-Aug-2o23 | i8-Aug-2026 24 76.70 10,455 17,728
HAR's- Tranehe 2 - grd Vesting 18-Aug-2021 | 18-Aup-2024 10-Aug-2027 ah 72.00 10,455 17,728
GAs Tronche 1 - Bullon Vesting 18-Aug-2021 | 18-Aug-2024 | 10-Ang-2027 a6 172.79 8,668 16,708
Taotal 40,033 69.802
n a As at March 31
h o N Vesting year | Fair Value of As at March 31,2023 0
SAR Plan Details Grant Date | Vesting Date | Exercise date (In Months) Options (No. of Shares) 2022
(No. of Shares)
- ———— =L
SAR's- Tranche - 1st Viesting 18-Aupg-soet | 18-Aug-o022 1H-Aug-a025 12 617.66 B,g06 17,728
SAR's- Tranche 5 - 2nd Vesting 1R-Aug-2021 | 18-Aug-2023 | 18-Aug-2026 24 76.79 8.396 17,728
SAR's- Tranche 5 - grd Vesting |_18-Aug-2021 | 18-Aug-2024 | 10-Ang-2027 a6 72.00 ) 17,728
SAR's- Tranche 5 - Bullet Vestiny 18-Aug-2021 | 18-Aug-z024 | 1g-Aug-a027 | 36 172.79 16,708
Tatal 60.802

[
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51 Additional regulatory information required by Schedule I

(i) Details of benami property held.

No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.

(ii) Borrowing secured against all current assets
Tl Company has borrowings from banks and financial institutions on the hasis of security of all current assets. The Company has been
sanctioned working capital limits of Rs. 1,500 lakhs from bank on the basis of security of current assets. The bank has explained to the
Company that there is no need for the Company to file the quarterly returns or statements.

(iii) Wilful defaulter

None of the entities in the Company have been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any
government authority.

(iv) Compliance with number of layers of companies
The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

(v) Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements
The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year.

(vi) Utlisation of borrowed funds and share premium
a) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any ather person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Intermiediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
1. Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the group
(Ultimate Beneficiaries)
or
o, Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries,
b) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the group shall:
1. Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
2, Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

(vii) Undisclosed Income

There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account.

(viii) Details of crypto currency or virtual currency
The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.

(ix) Valuation of PP&E, intangible asset and investment property

The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during the
current or previous year.

(x) Relationship with struck off Companies
The Company has no transactions with the companies struck off under Section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of
Companies Act, 1956.

(xi) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India.

(xii) The Group (Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited) has 8 CICs (registered and unregistered) as part of the Group.

52 Going concern
The management of the Company, based on the finaneial projections, is confident that the Company's saules would grow and
profitability would improve. Further, Aditya Birla Fashion and Retail Limited (Holding Company), confirming its financial and
aperational support to the Company for its cimtinued operations in future, which will permit it to discharge its linbilities, ns and when
they fall due, and continue to operate as a going concern. Accordingly, these financial statements have been prepared ona going
concern basis.
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53 Previous Year Figures
Previous years’ figures have been regrouped/recasted, wherever necessary, to confirm to the current year’s presentation.
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